A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

D@ =2t Negoriations Bl

Vol. 13 No. 54  Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (1ISD) Friday, 14 May 1999
HIGHLIGHTS OF IFF-3 WORKING GROUP 1
WEDNESDAY AND THURSDAY, In conclusions on forest conservation and protected areas, the
12-13 MAY 1999 G-77/CHINA suggested adding watershed protection as a benefit

On the eighth day of IFF-3, delegates met in a morning Plenand the US added reference to biodiversity and ecological func-
to further deliberate international mechanisms and arrangementi&ns. On adopting policies towards forest conservation, TURKEY
WG1 convened to finalize Co-Chairs’ Reports on forest consenatressed the introduction of appropriate legislation. Regarding the
tion and protected areas, forest research and monitoring progreB3@N definition of protected areas, the EU recognized it as one of
implementation. WG2 met briefly to hear contact group reports.geveral existing definitions and said categories being developed
contact group to negotiate text on WG2 programme elements nreged to be flexible and encompass the range of forest protection
throughout the day. Contact groups on trade and environment, regimes worldwide. On awareness of forest conservation benefits,
transfer of ESTs, and international mechanisms and arrangemedid®ONESIA called to include biological resources and noted the
met intermittently throughout the day and into the night. Althougteed to emphasize international cooperation for forest conserva-
regular sessions were not held on Thursday, due to a holiday, th@n. Regarding proposals for action, AUSTRALIA added text
contact group on international mechanisms and arrangements recalling relevant IPF proposals. On proposed commitment to the
reconvened. conservation and representativeness of all types of forests,
PLENARY ESTONIA requested, and BRAZIL opposed, deletion of represen-

. . . _tativeness. The US suggested that countries be encouraged to iden-
Co-Chair Ristamaki opened the Plenary to resume discussiqfy, conservation as necessary and consistent with national

on internationa_l arrangements and mechanisms. On th? need f?friorities. CANADA called for commitment to protection and
consensus on international arrangements and mechanisms,  ¢,nservation. On development and implementation of conservation
AUSTF.QAL'IA supported. an actlon-orl'ented approach and refere%%tegies and integral elements, BRAZIL suggested adding

to monitoring progress in implementing the IPF and IFF proposal§yshasis on the continued integrity of genetic diversity. The US

On the proposal to analyze arrangements and mechanisms,  5jjeq to delete, and COLOMBIA opposed, integration of indige-
CANADA, supported by the RUSSIAN FEDERATION and nous peoples “rights.”

GABON, suggested an additional function ensuring the strongest On recognition of forest protected areas under the stewardship

Ielvel oftcorlnrtr_utmtent;ro StFM He also prop?se]:(d antaddltu()jnal dof private owners, NIGERIA and BRAZIL, opposed by the US,
element refating to efiective governance of a forest agenda andy, oterre the term control. Regarding criteria for identifying new

proposed voluntary mechanisms, existing LBIs and a new LB rotected areas, the EU, supported by EGYPT, called for criteria on
options for future arrangements. BENIN, supported by GABON % quacy, consistency and effectiveness
said that existing instruments are inadequate and supported an? ?On inn’ovative mechanisms for financing forest conservation

Thg EU.sald that elements should relate to future global forest APAN, TURKEY and the EU, opposed by AUSTRALIA,
policy dialogue. He reformulated an element to refer to a forum for

the promotion of trade in sustainably produced forest qoods. O roposed deleting reference to the Clean Development Mechanism
the pron yp 9 '~ and Joint Implementation activities of the Kyoto Protocol. The EU

%¥oposed, and BRAZIL opposed, replacing this reference with
ossible returns from carbon sequestration. ESTONIA suggested

Ricketing reference to private law contracts in protected area
rate on basic functions of the global forest policy dialogue beyo g P P

- : anagement regimes. INDONESIA proposed, and CHILE
2000. The UTC” sgppc_;rted by BRAZIL, suggested |nclu_d|ng refer()pposed, deleting reference to tax deductions for private forest
ence to cost implications. CUBA proposed text regarding a matr].

o e i Onservation. On establishing joint protected areas, the US
combining elements of existing instruments and mechanisms.

. o . proposed, and BRAZIL opposed, deleting reference to corridors of
AUSTRALIA called for an analysis of optioniafer alia, %Iobal significance. On providing resources to support forest

improved coordination of existing arrangements, a new perman Mservation. the US suggested, and INDONESIA, the G-77/

forum for intergovernmental dialogue, designation of an existingtl_”'\IA and BRAZIL opposed, deleting language on providing

organization as the lead body, and a new global legal inStrumen&dequate resources and technology transfer

transfer and new and additional financial resources.
On preparation for IFF-4, the EU proposed adding text to el

This issue of th&arth Negotiations Bulleti® <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by lan Fry <Ifry@pegasus.com.au>, Laura lvers <laurai@iisd.org>, Leila Mead
<leila@interport.net>, Mark Schulman <markschulman@hotmail.com> and Anny Wong, Ph.D <annywong@compuserve.com>. Digitalyddawngd Fernau
<david@virtualstockholm.net> and logistics by Juana Espasa <espasa@hotmail.com>. The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. gpaar@iikd.danaging Editor is Langston
James "Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors dBtiietinare The Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the
United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape, and the United Kingdom Depantereatiford] Development (DFID). General
Support for th&ulletinduring 1999 is provided by the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Developreeati @o@MZz), the
Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the European Community (DG-XI), the Ministries of Environment and Foreign Affairs odAtigtriMinistries of Foreign Affairs and
Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Ministry of Environment of Finland, the Government of Swedeiitgeith&lations Development Programme (UNDP),
the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and the Ministry for the Environment in Icelandleincan be contacted by e-mail at<enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax:
+1-212-644-0206. 1ISD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, WinnipegRBBu@it6h Canada. The opinions expressed in
theEarth Negotiations Bulletiare those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of [ISD and other funders. ExcerptE&mimNigotiations Bulletimay be used
in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material ini@iopuivlerations, contact the Managing Editor.
Electronic versions of thBulletinare sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. heresgellitas taken
above Nairobi, Kenya, (¢)1999 The Living Earth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information BattiieNegotiations Bulletirsend e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Harth Negotiations Bulletin
Friday, 14 May 1999 T ..o Vol. 13 No. 54 Page 2

Regarding the use of IUCN categories for protected areas, gates did not reach consensus regarding a proposal on the develop-
INDONESIA called for deletion of legal objectives in relation to ment of transparent goals and conditions in SAPs. A group of
protected areas management. The FAO suggested, and developing countries called for replacement text requesting inter-
AUSTRALIA opposed, deleting reference to IUCN categories. national lending and financial organizations to consider mitigating
The CBD proposed taking account of its own work. Regarding the impacts of SAPs on forests consistent with SFM.
international financial institutions and improving coordination, On future supply and demand conclusions, delegates added
BRAZIL proposed language referring to market access and prote@tural forests” and “planted forests” as increasing sources of
tive measures. The EU suggested bracketing the whole paragrapbod fiber in some regions. A proposal to consider the impact of

Regarding forest research conclusions, AUSTRALIA, policies on consumption and production patterns and on market
supported by the US, proposed emphasizing the importance of efficiency was deleted. A proposal to add reference to local and/or
engaging major groups in identifying priorities in improved foreshdigenous communities to a paragraph on ownership was
research mechanisms. On proposals for action, AUSTRALIA, accepted.
supported by the US and CHILE, proposed improving linkages  In the proposals for action, delegates deleted a proposal to
between forest science and policy by creating opportunities for segregate data on products derived from plantations and those from
policymakers, scientists and other stakeholders to provide reseaeglral forests. Delegates concurred on adopting an internationally
guidance at the national level. The EU emphasized particular atégjieed definition of “planted forests” instead of “forest planta-
tion on research on underlying causes of deforestation and degtrfis.” Delegates agreed policies promoting sustainable production
tion and examining new ways of mobilizing funding. BRAZIL, of wood and non-wood forest goods and services should encourage
supported by GABON, called on international organizations andequitable distribution of benefits from such activities to the people
financial institutions to fund forest research in developing coun-who protect and provide them. A new proposal recognizing that
tries. On strengthening research networks, BRAZIL proposed appropriate prices can encourage and support SFM was accepted.
reference to joint ventures between public and private sectors. On the need for financial resources, delegates discussed, but did not

On a conclusion on monitoring progress in implementation, thgree on, two conclusions regarding sources of funding for SFM in
US, the G-77/CHINA and others agreed that all countries shouldeveloping countries and strategies for mobilizing resources.
give greater priority to financial and technical assistance to INTERNATIONAL ARRANGEMENTS AND MECHA-
strengthen capacity building in developing countries. BRAZIL NISMS: Discussion centered on guidance to the Secretariat for
sought clarification on the validity of synthesized information anFF-4 preparations to support deliberations on possible elements of
reiterated the importance of adequate financial resources for mand work towards consensus on international arrangements and
toring and reporting at the national level. The US proposed text mechanisms. Delegates agreed the Secretariat’s report should elab-
recognizing the costs involved in information collection. INDO- orate possible functions of international arrangements and mecha-
NESIA supported the EU proposal on the need for effective feeghisms, possible elements for future work in this area and an
back mechanisms. BRAZIL, supported by the G-77/CHINA andanalysis of various options. Regarding possible elements, delegates
AUSTRALIA, and opposed by CANADA and the US, suggestedtiebated whether the work or the results of the IPF and the IFF
an additional proposal requesting adequate financial resourcesdhbuld form the basis. Delegates did not agree on whether specific
capacity building to support national reporting. reference should be made to country-led initiatives. On analysis of
CONTACT GROUPS options, delegates agreed that such arrangements and mechanisms

] would further develop the international forest policy dialogue for
TRADE AND ENVIRONMENT: The contact group on tradeaction. On designation of a lead body as an option for analysis, one
and environment reached no agreement on references to sust

X a1"@'gional group proposed, and others opposed, singling out the FAO
ably managed forgst DTOdUCtS' in the contg Xt of market transparés an example. As a result, delegates agreed to delete all examples
ency, and forest biological resources. While some developed

. . . . L of institutions and instruments in the options. A new proposal for
countries opposed including reference to trade liberalization,

developi i id it tial for SEM i Tﬁnalysis, relating to a framework convention allowing for regional
eveloping countries said it was essential for promotion. %chanisms, was included.

group discussed a suggestion to add text urging that C&L schemes

promote SFM. Developing countries said consensus could not ild THE CORRIDORS

reached until the trade liberalization issue was resolved. These  While some delegates feel that the debate on technology

proposals were bracketed and will be forwarded to IFF-4. transfer is close to resolution, others believe that a significant
TRANSFER OF ESTs:The contact group on EST transfer didNorth-South divide remains. Some delegates are hoping that a

not reach consensus on text regarding developing technologiesieyional group will come forward with an olive branch.

group of developing countries indicated their preference for more

active and operational language and proposed adding a paragraph THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY

in the proposals to reflect this. Most developed countries felt that PLENARY: Plenary will meet at 10:00 am in Salle XIX to

developing technologies is not within the purview of governmenfurther discuss international arrangements and mechanisms and to
WG2 PROGRAMME ELEMENTS: The contact group on consider and adopt Co-Chairs’ Reports.

WG2 programme elements discussed economic instruments, future

supply and demand and financial resources. On economic instru-

ments, a proposed conclusion was accepted recognizing the exten-

sive effects on the forest sector of macroeconomic policies. Also

accepted was a conclusion noting that developments and inconsis-

tent policies in other sectors can lead to unintended changes in the

forest sector and can undermine the use of forest policy tools. Dele-



